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PIXTON PARK

Pixton Park lies within the triangle of land formed by the rivers Barle and Exe, and Jury Hill and the built-up area of Dulverton to the north. Within this triangle is Pixton Hill, which rises dramatically between the two rivers. The hill rises to two peaks, the northern a little over 700 ft. (213 m.)  high, the southern 780 ft. (237 m.). The park occupies a large part of the hill, especially on the western side where the present house stands. 

Pixton, known in the 13th century as Picotiston,
 belonged to a family of the same name until it was acquired by Sir William Bonville in 1440. The fields of the estate survive as areas of ridge and furrow in the later park. Sir William’s eventual heir, Henry Grey, later duke of Suffolk sold Pixton, described as a manor, in 1549 to John Sydenham of Dulverton.
 The house may have been rebuilt in the 16th century. In 1658 it was described as a hall house, the hall having other buildings including a kitchen on its north side and adjacent farm buildings.
 The estate was divided but was eventually reunited in the hands of Edward Dyke. 

Edward’s granddaughter Elizabeth Dyke married Sir Thomas Acland. They or their son Colonel John Acland (d. 1778) and his wife, Lady Harriot may have built the new house at Pixton and laid out the park. The house was a modest one with only three principal ground-floor rooms but Lady Harriot chose to spend most of her life there. In the 1780s it was described as a very pretty white house
 and in 1796 as a modern structure on a site of high picturesque beauty.
 Lady Harriot’s cousin Admiral Robert Digby of Sherborne, an amateur architect, appears to have designed a bridge for the park, possibly the New Bridge over the Barle. On a visit in 1788 he admired his new bridge and the river Barle.
 The large pond may be a remnant of an ornamental lake built at this date, later used as a fishing or boating pond. The smaller ponds probably date from the mid 19th century and include a bathing pond.

Lady Harriot’s daughter Elizabeth Kitty married Henry George Herbert, Lord Porchester, who in 1811 succeeded his father as 2nd earl of Carnarvon. They demolished the house in 1803 and replaced it with a three-story mansion with ten bedrooms and nine attics completed at the end of 1805 by Hassell of Exeter.
  The 4th earl chose not to live at Pixton, which was let to the Hon. Alexander Nelson Hood, later Baron and Viscount Bridport (d. 1904), and from 1854 to Mordaunt Fenwick (later Bisset).
 In 1870 the house was altered internally and a west wing with billiard room added. The entrance was moved to the north front and an entrance hall with service wing added on east side. Two of the original service wings may have been demolished. The new hall, divided by a 3-bay arcade, has a staircase rising to a top lit gallery continued around 2 storeys supported by large modillion brackets. Some of the original early 19th-century cornices, shutters, doors, doorcases and white marble chimney-pieces survive but others were removed in the later 20th century.

The 5th earl of Carnarvon (d. 1923) sold Pixton in 1902 to his step-mother Elisabeth Catharine, for the benefit of her elder son Aubrey (d. 1923). Col Aubrey’s extraordinary memorial with effigy lies in the Lutyens chapel at Brushford church. Aubrey’s widow Mary, nee de Vesci, lived at Pixton until her death in 1970 and is commemorated in St Stanislaus RC church in Dulverton.
 

The estate also includes a fine mid to late 18th-century stable block, now a house. It is a U-shaped building with a seven-bay central range with pediment and bell-cote. From the same period survive the pair of entrance lodges and one gate pier from the original north entrance, now abandoned, from Jury Road. These attractive buildings with their lunette gable windows are now private dwellings. To the south is the new entrance utilising New Bridge made in the 1870s with its own lodge. This was convenient for the new railway station at which many of the guests for Pixton would arrive. 

The buildings linked with the running of the estate were some distance from the house by the river Exe at a place known as Weir. Here was sited the farm and workers’ cottages, estate office, workshops, carpenters’ shop, with three benches, and sawmills, for cutting the estate timber for fencing, repairs, gates, doors or windows in the carpenter's shop. Oak, larch and spruce were the main woods sawn. A leat from Hele Bridge brought the water to drive the wheel, which powered the saw bench until the 20th century when the water was used to generate electricity for the workshops.
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